1968

Lakeshore Motor Coach Lines, Inc., Wasatch Motors, Inc., Metro Transportation, Inc., Ogden Bus Lines v. Salt Lake Transportation Company, Public Service Commission Of Utah, Donald Hacking, Hal S. Bennett And Donald T. Adams : Brief of Plaintiffs Continental Bus System, Inc., Et Al.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In November of 1965 Salt Lake Transportation filed an Application for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity before the Commission. It sought authority to operate as a common motor carrier of passengers and baggage in intrastate commerce and attached to its Application a "Statement of Financial Condition" and a schedule of its equipment (R. 600-604). It proposed to operate as a common carrier for passengers and their baggage in the same or separate vehicles, in special operations, in sight-seeing or pleasure tours, between all points and places in Davis, Morgan, Salt Lake, Utah, Tooele, Summit, and Wasatch Counties; and from said counties to all points and places in the State of Utah, and return, over predetermined routes and/or irregular routes and operate under the name of Salt Lake Transportation or Gray Line Motor Tours.

At the time of hearing, it amended its application restrictively, so as to provide that the services referred to would be performed between all points and places within a 26 mile radius of the city limits of Salt Lake City, Utah and from said radial area to all points and places in the State of Utah and return over predetermined routes and/or irregular routes and that the 26 miles would be calculated on an air line basis (R. 25-26).

Continental, along with other common carriers, protested the Application.

Continental is a common carrier doing business in both interstate and intrastate commerce and operates in the State of Utah. The Commission took notice of Continental's operating authority (R. 507) which is defined in the Order (R. 622). Continental holds authority to operate charter round trips originating on U. S. Highway 91 in Salt Lake City south and between Provo and the Deer Creek Damsite, which is located between Provo and Heber City. It can also operate round trip charter service from Salt Lake City on U. S. Highway 40 west to the Utah-Nevada line and from the Utah-Wyoming state line on the north to the Utah-Arizona state line or the south from U. S. Highway 91. It is further authorized to conduct round trip charter trips from U. S. Highway 40 between Salt Lake City and the Utah-Colo-rado state line or as an alternate route from U. S. Highway 91 between Salt Lake City and Provo and from U. S. Highway 189 between Provo and Heber City or from U. S. Highway 52 from Orem to the junction of U. S.

Highway 189 and from Heber to the Utah-Colorado state line over U. S. Highway 40. It generally holds the authority to serve charter round trips originating on all routes served in its regular common carrier operation, restricted only against transportation service for tours on any regular schedule or regular route and trips wholly within municipal corporate limits served by urban transportation companies (R. 622-623).

A number of witnesses appeared on behalf of Salt Lake Transportation, which fall into three general classifications. Those who are affiliated officially with a public or community body; those with private business interests; and officials of Salt Lake Transportation.

Within the first group were: H. Devereaux Jennings — Assistant Director of the State Tourist and Publicity (R. 31); Lowe Ashton — President, Wasatch Chamber of Commerce (R. 70); Rulon Doman — Scout Executive Emeritus, Boy Scouts of America (R. 88); Andrew R. Hurley — City Attorney for Park City (R. 120); Murray M. Moler — Chairman, Utah Travel Council (R. 162); F. C. Koziol — Director of the Utah Park and Recreation Commission (R. 173); Henry Cameron — President, Granger-Hunter Chamber of Commerce (R. 187-188); Frank C. Burns — President, Kearns Lions Club (R. 192); Ted Covington — Member of Board of Directors, Kearns Chamber of Commerce (R. 290); Ira Beesley — Member of Board of Directors, Davis County Chamber of Commerce (R. 297); Reid D. Pace — Summit County Clerk, Hoytsville, Utah (R. 308). —

These witnesses generally testified they would favor the additional tour and charter service offered by Salt Lake Transportation, but the witnesses, without exception, testified they were not aware of deficiencies in existing transportation service and that they had not been refused charter transportation service. Jennings (R. 55); Ashton (R. 86-87); Doman (R. 102); Hurlburt (R. 151, 153); Moler (R. 169); Koziol (R. 185, 186); Cameron (R. 189); Burns (R. 198-199); Covington (R. 296); Beesley (R. 306); Pace (R. 315, 316, 317).

The second group were persons who own and operate businesses in the ski resort areas. They testified for Salt Lake Transportation to be able to transport people principally skiers, between Alta, Brighton, Park City and Wasatch State Park. These witnesses also said they were not aware of deficiencies in existing carriers' charter service. None of them had ever called Continental or been refused Continental's services. Gertrude Howard — Owner-operator Mount Majestic Manor at Brighton (R. 241); Lee Bronson — Owner-manager Rustler Lodge at Alta (R. 324, 328).

Mr. Charles A. Boynton, Jr., President and General Manager of the Salt Lake Transportation, testified as to the Company's equipment and that Salt Lake Transportation presently held certain charter authority. Exhibit 5 (R. 528) contains this authority and limits the point of origin of Salt Lake Transportation in this respect to Salt Lake City (R. 250) although Salt Lake Transportation has considered the Salt Lake City origin point to encompass the greater Salt Lake area (R. 251).

Salt Lake Transportation did not present an income statement (R. 274) and its President said his Company wanted to compete with Continental's charter service rights (R. 276).

Salt Lake Transportation currently operates an airport limousine service, a rent-a-car service, and Gray Line Sight-seeing tours and the same equipment used for these operations would be utilized in its proposed charter service (R. 287).

Concerning equipment, its witnesses testified that for presently authorized operations it has been necessary for the company to secure equipment from other carriers and at the present time the company has found it more economical to borrow additional buses from other carriers than to maintain its own (R. 332). During the skiing season the company operates sometimes 25 to 30 vehicles on Saturday mornings in January and it obtains as many as 15 or 20 buses from Lewis Bros. Lines (R. 333). The last equipment purchased outright for charter service by Salt Lake Transportation preceded the hearing by some fifteen months (R. 334).

Continental's evidence was introduced through Exhibits 40 through 54 (R. 584-599c) and shows the Company's income statements, operating ratios, and bus miles operated, revenues derived in Utah, and equipment and buses licensed in Utah. Exhibit 51 (R. 596) shows Continental's Utah investment to be \$3,794,230.07 as of December 31, 1965 (R. 596) with a \$525,480.43 payroll in Utah for the year 1965 (R. 597).

Testimony and evidence showed Continental had not turned down anyone desiring charter service and had equipment available for this service at all times (R. 504).

Continental maintains and bases approximately 25 buses in Utah (R. 510) and derived \$8,327 in revenues for its charter service in Utah in 1965 (R. 513, 599).

Tour and charter service revenues are set forth in the Special Bus Revenue classification of the Company's Exhibits (R. 584-599). The classification also contains revenues derived from the interstate aspects of Continental's operations (R. 514).

The Record was closed June 21, 1966 and on January 20, 1967 the Commission issued its Report and Order substantially granting the authority sought by Salt Lake Transportation (R. 618-626) and as amended in its Order issued April 6, 1967 (R. 645-647).

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COMMISSION FAILED TO MAKE ESSENTIAL FINDINGS.

We recognize as we begin this argument that the provisions of Utah Code Ann. 1953, Sec. 54-7-16 require ". . . The findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of fact shall be final and shall not be subject to review. Such questions of fact shall include ultimate facts and the findings and conclusions of the commission on reasonableness and discrimination."

It is mandatory, however, that the Commission make findings on the essential elements of the case, and if such findings are not made, obviously a Commission Order is unreasonable, arbitrary, capricious and unlawful and must be set aside.

The facts to be established in a certificate proceeding in the State of Utah are well defined and have been recognized for a substantial period of time.

In *Mulcahy v. Public Service Commission*, 101 Utah 245, 117 P.2d 298 (1941), this Court stated as follows:

“While evidence pertinent to any question involved in the application may be presented on the hearing, the commission’s determinations would proceed as follows:

“Does the public convenience and necessity require further, new or additional common carrier service in the territory proposed to be served? If not, the application should be denied. If such service is required, should the applicant be permitted to render it? In determining the answer to this question the commission shall consider the following matters: (1) Is the applicant financially able to perform the service? If not, his application must be denied. (2) Will the operations proposed unduly injure the highway over which the operations must be carried on, or unduly interfere with the use of the same by the traveling public? If either phase of this question be answered in the affirmative the application should be denied. (3) Although beneficial to the territory to be served, would the service proposed be detrimental to the people of the states as a whole? If so, the application should be denied. (4) Having found now that the convenience and

necessity of the public in the territory proposed to be served, require additional service; that such service will not be detrimental to the people of the state as a whole; that applicant is financially able to render the service; that the service will not unduly injure the highway or unduly interfere with the public traveling thereon, the question is: Should such new service be rendered by existing carriers or by the new applicant? This question poses for the commission, not the finding of a factual answer, but the determination of a matter of policy. Which in the opinion of the commission will best subserve the public convenience, necessity and welfare? And in determining this matter the commission under the statute may and should take into consideration the existing transportation facilities, their investment, the taxes they pay, the services they have rendered and are now rendering; the need of a continuation of such services; the effect upon such services of a new obligation to serve; the effect upon such services of a new competitor in the transportation field; the effect of a new competitor or carrier upon the economic, industrial, social and intellectual life of the territory, and other matters which may affect the public welfare, and the growth and development of the life in, and resources of the state. That existing carriers engaged in transportation to and from a certain field or territory, rendering the service it is permitted or ordered to do, reasonably, adequately and efficiently, is not lightly or ruthlessly to be interfered with, or subjected to needless competition, is evident from the provisions of the statute Section 5 of Chapter 65, Laws of Utah 1935, after vesting in the commission the power to regulate and supervise all common motor carriers reads: “ * * * to regulate the facilities, accounts, service and safety of operation of each such common motor carrier, to regula-

operating and time schedules so as to meet the needs of any community, and so as to insure adequate transportation service to the territory traversed by such common motor carriers, and so as to prevent unnecessary duplication of service between these common motor carriers, and between them and the lines of competing steam and electric railroads; and the commisison may require the coordination of the service and schedules of competing common carriers by motor vehicles or electric and steam railroads * * *.'

"An applicant desiring to enter a new territory, or to enlarge the nature or type of the service he is permitted to render must therefore show that from the standpoint of public convenience and necessity there is a need for such service; that the existing service is not adequate and convenient, and that his operation would eliminate such inadequacy and inconvenience. He must also show that the public welfare would be better subserved if he rendered the service than if the existing carrier were permitted to do so. The paramount consideration is the benefit to the public, the promotion and advancement of its growth and welfare. Yet the interests of the existing certificate holder should be protected so far as that can be done without injury to the public, either to its present welfare or hindering its future growth, development, and advancement. *Corporation Comm. v. Pacific Greyhound Lines*, 54 Ariz. 159, 94 P.2d 443; *Chicago R.R. Co. v. Commerce Comm.*, 336 Ill. 51, 167 N.E. 840. Having given due consideration to those matters the commission determines whether the existing carriers or a new one should be permitted to render the proposed service. If the commission's determination finds justification in the evidence, it is not a law ques-

tion and we cannot review or modify it or set it aside. Regardless of what our own views on the matters may be, the determination of the commission on this matter finds support or justification in the evidence. We cannot say it acted arbitrarily or capriciously, and the finding thereon must stand."

Findings as to essential elements in this case, however, are nonexistent.

In Finding No. 1 (R. 619), the Commission sets forth the fact that Salt Lake Transportation presently holds certain certificates and the scope of its present authority.

In Finding No. 2 (R. 619), the Commission merely states the authority Salt Lake Transportation requested through its Application.

In Finding No. 3, the Commission Orders state: "It (Salt Lake Transportation) has more than adequate equipment and facilities to conduct the proposed operation and is financially capable of doing so."

This is an ultimate finding, if anything, and contrary to the Record before the Commission which discloses that Salt Lake Transportation had no intention of placing into evidence even its financial statement (R. 274). And with respect to equipment, the Record is again undisputed that Salt Lake Transportation presently may lease equipment from other carriers and that it intends to borrow or lease equipment if it were authorized to proceed under this Application (R. 331-334).

Obviously the Commission, based upon this testimony, could not make an adequate finding that it has "more" than adequate equipment and facilities to conduct the proposed operation. It cannot tell us, for example, whether the cost of equipment will make the service infeasible because there is no finding as to cost. It cannot tell us whether equipment for the service can be or is to be leased and its cost. For present operations Salt Lake Transportation must borrow equipment and so on what factual basis can this company have "more" than adequate equipment? The Commission does not tell us. It has not made the necessary finding.

Finding No. 4 merely reviews the sight-seeing and tour operations as conducted by Salt Lake Transportation in the past and adds nothing to essential findings required (R. 620).

Finding No. 5 purports to find that "There has been a substantial population and economic growth in the origin counties of the Application" (R. 620). And that "There appears a need for transportation service which can originate at a point other than Salt Lake City in the origin counties of the Application and to serve to and from various points in Utah.

This purported finding in like manner refers to alleged needs which are undefined. This is an ultimate finding or a conclusion not a finding as must be made by a fact finding body so that a reviewing body can determine whether authority has been exceeded. But there are no facts upon which such a finding could be

based. The Record discloses that Continental, as well as other common carriers, can and are performing charter service at the present time and very extensively through the areas in question.

Continental's authority, as has been pointed out, extends from U. S. Highway designations in the 26 mile area in which Salt Lake Transportation seeks its authority (R. 507).

Other carriers' evidence was also impressive in this respect. This testimony traces routes in great detail through certain areas and shows the extensive geography covered by these carriers. Mr. Joseph M. Lewis for plaintiff, Lewis Bros. Stages, testified as to certain of the Lewis Bros.' routes over which that Company and its affiliates are allowed to extend round trip charter service (R. 443-444), from which the Commission is bound to find, along with the other evidence in the Record that present carriers' charter and tour ability substantially blanket the area now sought to be certified to Salt Lake Transportation. But the element with respect to the lack of need will be developed later. It is suffice to say here there are no facts set forth in the findings from which the Commission's conclusion of "need," as set forth in Finding No. 5 (R. 621) can be predicated.

Findings 6 through 14 describe the various protestants before the Commission and their operating authorities and Finding No. 15 in conclusion form states:

“Because of the limitations of the authority of existing carriers it is apparent that they cannot meet the requirements for service outlined by the supporting witnesses and proposed by the applicant, for which the Commission finds a public need.

* * * * *

It appears to the Commission that the grant of authority as applied for in the Application would not unduly affect existing carriers adversely and will not burden the highways, and will serve the best public interest and be responsive to a public need.” (R. 624)

These could only be argued to be ultimate findings at best and, in fact, represent conclusions, not findings at all.

The foregoing is all we have from the Commission on its purported findings of public convenience and necessity. The Commission has fallen far short of its statutory duty and has failed and refused to make findings. In no way can we locate findings as to the essential elements of this case as dictated by authorities outlined above.

The Commission is an administrative agency created by Statutes of the State of Utah, Utah Code Ann. 1953, Sec. 54-1-1 - 54-7-30 and although it engages in quasi-judicial functions, it is basically a fact finding body.

It is an elementary rule of law that administrative agencies must make full and complete findings of fact upon which to rest their decisions. As the cases which we will cite disclose, adequate findings of fact are an absolute necessity. The basic reason for this requirement is to enable reviewing courts to determine readily whether

the administrative body has properly pursued its authority, confined its inquiry to its statutory limitations, and correctly applied the law to the facts. Another very practical reason is to aid the party litigants in framing, and the Court in deciding, the issues on appeal. The decision of the Commission completely violates this elementary principle of administrative law.

In Volume 2, Davis, Administrative Law Treatise, at page 444, Section 16.05, the following is stated with respect to the requirement that administrative agencies must make full and complete findings of fact upon disputed issues:

“The practical reasons for requiring administrative findings are so powerful that the requirement has been imposed with remarkable uniformity by virtually all federal and state courts, irrespective of a statutory requirement. The reasons have to do with facilitating judicial review, avoiding judicial usurpation of administrative functions, assuring more careful administrative consideration, helping parties plan their cases for rehearings and judicial review, and keeping agencies within their jurisdiction.

“Much the most prominent reason discussed in judicial opinions, and the reason which is clearly dominant in judicial motivation, is the facilitation of judicial review. A simple illustration will readily show the need for findings as an aid to judicial review. A statute provided that no milk license should be granted unless the commissioner ‘is statisfied that the applicant is qualified by character, experience, financial responsibility and equipment to properly conduct the proposed business, that the issuance of the license

will not tend to a destructive competition in a market already adequately served, and that issuance of the license is in the public interest.' For the court to review a bulky record without knowing which of the six factors the commissioner found to be lacking would obviously be wasteful. Hardly surprising was the court's holding that 'Only after the commissioner has made findings of fact can the court decide whether the findings are sustained by the evidence. . . .' When issues are more complex and interdependent, the need for findings is even greater.

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