1968

Lakeshore Motor Coach Lines, Inc., Wasatch Motors, Inc., Metro Transportation, Inc., Ogden Bus Lines v. Salt Lake Transportation Company, Public Service Commission Of Utah, Donald Hacking, Hal S. Bennett And Donald T. Adams :  
Brief of Defendants

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

## ARGUMENT

POINT I. THE EVIDENCE SUPPORTS THE COMMISSION'S FINDINGS THAT THERE IS NEED FOR DEFENDANT'S PROPOSED SERVICE, THAT EXISTING SERVICE IS INADEQUATE AND THAT THE PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY REQUIRES GRANTING THE DEFENDANT'S APPLICATION.

Plaintiff's complaints here are the same as in *Lewis v. Wycoff Company*, 18 Utah 2d 255, 420 P.2d 264 (1966) where this Court said:

"The criticisms which the protesting carriers make of this order are not unfamiliar in cases of

this kind: that the evidence does not justify finding of public convenience and necessity for the proposed service because existing services offered by them are adequate; that the granting of the order of authority will hazard their continuance; and that the order is too vague and indefinite to constitute a proper grant of authority."

This Court has said many times that an applicant must prove necessity for any proposed service, that the Public Service Commission has the responsibility of safeguarding the ability of existing carriers to maintain financially sound operations to insure efficient and economical service to the public on the long term basis, that the Commission is in better position than this Court to survey the details of such policy considerations, that the Commission has specialized knowledge and experience in this field, and has the advantage of a trial court in proximity to the parties and witnesses, that the facts found by the Commission need not be conclusively established nor shown by a preponderance of the evidence but need only be based on some competent evidence, that the Commission's findings and orders are presumed correct and valid and will not be reversed unless there is no reasonable basis to support them, and that the burden is upon plaintiffs in this Court to show that the findings are thus in error. *Lewis v. Wycoff Company, supra*; *Gardner Freightlines, Inc. v. Hunt*, 19 Utah 2d 234, 429 P.2d 981 (1967); *Ashworth Transfer Co. v. Public Service Commission*, 2 Utah 2d 23, 268 P.2d 990 (1954).

Each plaintiff here has charter authority specifically limited to transporting charter groups originating in

the routes served them in their regular route bus operations (except Metro and Wasatch which originate from Hill Air Force Base) and from there they can generally carry to points and places throughout Utah. Continental's, Lakeshore's, Bingham's, and Lewis Bros.' charter authority is restricted against transportation service for tourists and against any regular schedule or regular route. Continental's charter authority is further restricted against trips wholly within the corporate limits of cities served by inter-urban transportation companies. Defendant Salt Lake Transportation had authority to transport charter groups originating within Salt Lake City and thence throughout Utah. It applied to increase the point of origin to a 26 mile radius of Salt Lake City, and thence throughout Utah. Plaintiffs' regular route authority, limited primarily to major highways, merely crosshatches small areas of the 26 mile radius metropolitan area, leaving vast sections of the 26 mile radius, outside of Salt Lake City, without state-wide charter service. This territory without service defendant proposed to serve.

Farther, before the application was granted, it was impossible for a single charter group whose members were located throughout the 26 mile area, which would usually be the case, to have its members picked up at more than one spot, and then travel together as a group to their destination point. Instead, unless all of them happened to be located on one of plaintiffs' existing routes or in Salt Lake City, they all had to transport themselves to a single origin point. None of plaintiffs' briefs recognize

that defendant Salt Lake Transportation proposed new service, in areas not served by plaintiffs or anyone.

The Commission found, in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order (R-620), that Salt Lake Transportation has more than adequate equipment and terminals to conduct the proposed operations and is financially able, experienced and qualified to do so, that extensive planning and promotion is involved in charter operations, and that defendant through Gray Line Sightseeing Companies, Inc. advertises its tours throughout the country. In paragraphs 5 and 15 of the Order, the Commission made the critical findings. Paragraph 5 reflects that a substantial number of witnesses supported the application, including representatives of state agencies and witnesses from other governmental boards, service clubs, resort operators and others, that from such testimony it is apparent there has been substantial population and economic growth in the origin territory and addition of new points of interest therein and throughout Utah, that there is need for charter service originating at points other than Salt Lake City in the various towns and communities which have been established or extended at the various points in the origin territory, and for services between such points and for service from the origin territory to other points in Utah (R-620-1). In paragraph 15, the Commission found that because of limitations on the authority of the existing carriers, they cannot meet the requirements for service outlined by supporting witnesses and proposed by the applicant for which the Commission found a public

ped. Further, the Commission found that a restriction in the grant of authority against points served by existing carriers would prevent applicant from performing the required service and would result in authority which would not adequately meet the public requirement, that the grant of authority would not unduly affect existing carriers adversely, would not burden the highways and would serve the public interest and be responsive to public need (R-624).

Does the record contain support of any substance for those findings and determinations? *Lakeshore Motor Coach Lines v. Bennett*, 8 Ut. 2d 293, 333 P.2d 1061. Is there any reasonable basis in the evidence to support them? *Garrett Freightlines, Inc. v. Hunt*, 19 Ut. 2d 234, 4 P.2d 981. If so, the order should be affirmed.

Mr. Boynton, applicant's President, testified of defendant's extensive advertising (R-210, 214), its equipment to handle charter operations (R-212) and gave evidence of its healthy financial condition (R-209). He described the great growth in the 26 mile area (R-215), the growth in tourism (R-231), the efforts by all governmental agencies to develop further tourist business (R-216-9), and said that in his expert and experienced opinion there is a requirement for service which is not being filled and which his company is eminently qualified to handle (R-222). He specifically said the company proposes charter trips for small population centers (R-224) and that Ogden, Weber County and Provo were eliminated from the area of application because the company

was attempting to give service only to the section of the country which does not currently have service (R-255). He said the 26 mile area has become a single metropolitan area rather than separate cities and towns in the minds of the people (R-255), thus clearly showing a need for a carrier to have charter authority originating from metropolitan Salt Lake rather than from the Salt Lake City limits, so as to interconnect it all. He described the need for point to point service within the 26 mile area (R-226) and showed the difficulty of having charter operations originate only at Salt Lake City instead of being able to pick up members of the group wherever they might be within the area of origin. (R-227) He said the proposed operations could not be conducted if individual points in the 26 mile area were eliminated because the public would be unable to understand numerous exceptions having to be made to an offering of service throughout the origin area. (R-232) With numerous small groups existing throughout the area, none of which alone could economically charter a bus, the need to be able to pick up several groups throughout the area for consolidation into one larger group is obvious, to the end that all may have available the needed charter service not heretofore available. Such service could not be offered if exception were made for each of plaintiffs' cross-hatching authorities.

Mr. Jennings of the State Tourist and Publicity Council testified of the growth in use and development of tourist attractions in the area and the growth in the advertising to obtain more tourists (R-40), showing that new destination points and new passengers have and are



being developed. He testified of the demand and need for charter service within the area (R-40, 43-4) and of the unavailability and undiscoverability of existing service (R-56-7, 63-4, 67). His testimony and that of the witnesses throughout clearly shows that even if existing service is authorized in limited cross-hatching of the area, if it is not promoted and no one knows of its existence. What is unknown cannot be used and is, therefore, surely inadequate.

Mr. Moler of the Utah Tourist Council testified of the great growth in tourism, said the more transportation available, the better travelers could be served, and clearly showed how the national advertising of defendant's tours benefited local tourism (R-161, 163, 171).

Mr. Koziol of the Utah Park and Recreation Commission identified groups throughout the 26 mile radial area that would be traveling to Wasatch Mountain Golf Course at Heber, to Rockport, and other state parks and said, with regard to the application, "there is little doubt that the need for additional transportation would be great" (R-175-8, 184).

Mr. Doman of the Boy Scouts testified of the need for defendant's type of charter authority originating throughout the 26 mile area and of individual charters stopping at more than one location throughout the area. (R. 96-111)

Thus, personnel from two state tourist agencies, from the State Park and Recreations Commission and from the Boy Scouts have all positively described an existing and growing need throughout the entire 26 mile

radius as a whole for charter service which none of the plaintiffs are authorized to render. To the extent limited cross-hatching service might be authorized, if it is known to witnesses of this type and the others who testified, who because of their positions are so situated as to best know what service the public needs, then it can be confidently concluded that existing service is inadequate.

It is interesting that notwithstanding such evidence of need for service throughout the 26 mile radius as a whole, plaintiffs now each take their own limited areas of service and contend there was no reason shown why defendant should be authorized to serve. Plaintiffs spoke from the other sides of their mouths at hearing, for when Mr. Boynton was asked if it would be feasible to conduct operations if, for example, Park City were eliminated as a point of charter operation, all three of plaintiffs' counsel objected to the materiality saying:

"When you have an application involving the total area, are we going to go over each individual point and community in the entire 26 mile radius and then each point and community in the entire State of Utah and ask about those?"

Continental's counsel added the objection:

"And for the added reason that that comes under the purview of the Commission's decision as to the effect of this thing on this carrier and other carriers." (R-232).

Notwithstanding that incongruity, other witnesses testified of the need for defendant's proposed charter service and inadequacy or non-existence of plaintiff services in limited areas.

Thus, Mr. Ashton testified of the conversation of Heber Valley from agricultural and mining to tourist business (R-56), and said that applicant's proposed service has not been available in the area before, that it lends itself to the development of the tourist industry, that "we need them." "we have got to have more bus facilities," that there has been no effort by other companies to show that service is available, and that Wasatch County Chamber of Commerce supported the application (R-70-9). That clearly shows the inadequacy or undiscoverability of any existing charter service in Wasatch County, and shows a need for defendant's service in order to "sustain economic conditions" in the County.

Mr. Hurley similarly testified on behalf of Park City. He positively said that charter service originating throughout the 26 mile radius of Salt Lake City is not available, is needed and is desirable for Park City (R-156-7). The City Council of Park City similarly resolved (R-256). Mr. Hurley said not only would the granting of the application not burden the public streets, it would relieve congestion in Park City (R-158).

Mr. Henry Cameron of the Granger-Hunter Chamber of Commerce in Salt Lake County said the proposed service would be of benefit to the area and supported the application because a carrier that could be counted on is needed (R-191).

Mr. Burns of the Kearns Lions Club Utah said "there is great need" for charter service "which we haven't been able to get." According to Mr. Burns, the

fourth or fifth largest city in Utah is without charter service and that it would definitely benefit the town (R-193-5). He positively testified that Lewis Bros. and Greyhound would not give them charter service (R-194).

Mr. Covington of the Kearns Chamber of Commerce supported the application because it is an asset to the community and because Kearns is without charter service (R-293).

Mr. Beesley of the South Davis Chamber of Commerce presented the Chamber's resolution supporting the application, and said it would benefit Davis County, there was not much activity in soliciting service and that it is wanted throughout Davis County (R-302-4).

Mr. Pace, Summit County Clerk, showed the Board of Commissioners of Summit County favored the application, said that existing service is inadequate because twice his group had had to go 25 miles to obtain charter service, and that it would be of great benefit to the County to have defendant's service (R-312-7).

Mr. Bronson of Alta and Mrs. Howard of Brighton, Utah, each described the growing skiing facilities, the growing out-of-state tourist business, and the great need for charter service originating throughout the 26 mile radius to bring charter parties to the ski resort and to take guests from the ski resorts throughout the state. Each said that there is no such existing service (R-326-236-8).

Even the three public witnesses called by plaintiff

Lewis Bros. testified they would like Salt Lake Transportation's proposed service and that it would benefit Park City (R-378, 383, 394).

That plaintiffs are not interested in serving this evidenced public need is best shown by Mr. Lewis' testimony that his interest in the application lies only in areas in which his companies are now authorized to serve *and* are now serving, *and that as to areas which may be without service, he has no interest* (R-42). Mr. Boynton, on the other hand, testified that Ogden, Weber County and Provo were eliminated from Salt Lake Transportation's application because the company was attempting to serve those sections without service (R-255).

All three plaintiffs' briefs complain the evidence does not support the Commission's finding of need. They overlook that Mr. Boynton's testimony alone shows unrebutted evidence of need for charter service throughout the 26 mile area. What better evidence could there be than that from a passenger bus operator, long experienced in the field, who has thoroughly studied the situation, concluded that need exists and is therefore willing to commit company resources to fulfilling it. In *Lakeshore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. v. Welling*, 9 Utah 2d 114, 339 P.2d 1011, this Court held that the testimony of the applicant, Mr. Welling, was competent evidence of existing conditions and need for service, and that the Commission's granting of authority, based solely on his testimony alone, provided a basis for the finding of public need, even though the Commission might have chosen not to believe him.

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